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COMMODITY INVESTMENT FRAUD

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 1982

U.S. SENATE,
PERMANENT SUBCOMMITTEE ON INVESTIGATIONS
OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS,
Washzngton, D.C.

The subcommittee met at 10:20 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room
3302, Dirksen Senate Office Building, under authority of Senate
Resolution 361, dated March 5, 1980, Hon. William V. Roth, Jr.
(chairman of the subcommittee) pres1d1ng

Members of the subcommittee present: Senator William V. Roth,
Jr., Republican, Delaware; Senator Warren B. Rudman, Repubh—
can, New Hampshire; Senator Sam Nunn, Democrat, Georgla, and
Senator Lawton Chiles, Democrat, Florida.

Members of the professional staff present: S. Cass Weiland, chlef
counsel; Tom Karol, staff counsel; Eleanore J. Hill, chief counsel to
the mlnorlty, Katherine B1dden, chief clerk and Boy Geffen, staff
investigator.

[Members present at convening of hearmg Senators Roth,
Rudmian, and Nunn.) “

Chairman RotH. The subcommittee will be in order.

This morning the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations
undertakes several days of hearings into the continuing phenom-
enon of commodity-related investment- fraud schemes. Let me start
out by saying that, to.me, what I have learned about regulating the
sale of commodities is another illustration where -well-intended
laws are failing in its basic purpose of protecting the American
public. I found the nature and extent of these types of schemes
bemg perpetrated on the American public to be absolutely shock-
ing.-

The facts uncovered in our investigation show a continuing pat-
tern of criminal activity which has gone on almost unfettered since
the creation of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission in

- 1975. The evidence shows that at least $200 million a year is being

soaked up, bilked by the con artist operating under the guise of le-
gitimate commodity investment firms, and the ‘result has been the
victimization of thousands and thousands of Americans, both young
and old. Tragically, too often it is older people, widows who lose
their life savings because of these con artists.

Frankly, during this time, the principal enforcement agency, the

’CFTC has been seriously outgunned by its opposition, The CFTC,

with its roughly 25 lawyers and 10 investigators charged with pro-
tecting the public, the investing public, has been no match———no

.
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match—for the avalanche of schemes based on the numbers, if
10thing else.
110611111;1 gof the things that concerng me the most is that Vederal leg-
islation preempted this field so that State security administrators,
whose offices are charged with the responsibility of protecting citi-
zens against investment frauds, have been forced to stand on the
sidelines. They can do nothing. They say they find themselves pre-
empted simply because i;hée dcon artists classify their investment
as commodity related. .
ch?)néﬁ?s is one of thg things we will be looking at, the preemptive
language of the Commodity Exchange which has, as I said, side-
i te administrators. . '
hnlegx%te?ct evidence to be developed this week which will show an
astronomical recidivism rate among these commodity con artists.
What we really have is a floating crap game. These con artists
float in and out, rotating in and out of boilerrooms like clockwork,
and we intend to make available to our law enforcement agencies
our nationwide study of these schemes in hopes it will help them
crack down on these people whose names reappear all too often.

I also point out that the law has failed in several other particu-
lars. For example, it is so easy to register under the law tha}t it
helps the crooks, the con artists in their telephone calls to“the little
old lady or the widow or even the young. They often say, “Well, we
are registered.” The fact of the matter is registration means noth-
1ngI‘he law set up reparations which, hopefully, was intended to be
a relatively simple administrative basis of recovering funds for
those who are conned out of their money. Instead of working well,
it has been bogged down with redtape and, rather than helping,

n a hindrance. . _ ‘
hagobl?ihink this is an opportunity for the subcommittee to contin-
ue its work in the area of law enforcement which, of course, has
had a heavy emphasis on organized crime over the years. The com-
modity fraud problem is a subject which has received all too little
attention by Congress, and I am delighted that we are holding this
public hearing at the very time that the agency itself is coming up
for review.R 3

nator Rudman. . .
Sgnator RubpmMaN. I do not have an opening statement, Mr. Chair-
man.
airman RoTH. Senator Nunn. .
(Sjgnator Nunn. I will put my opening statement in the record.
[The document referred to follows:]

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR SAM NUNN

Senator NUNN. Mr. Chairman, I am very pleased to be here
today and to participate in these hearings on commodity invest-
ment fraud schemes. This subcommitee has for years investigated
many areas in which unscrupulous individuals have taken criminal
advantage of an unsuspecting, unprotected public by means of
fraudulent schemes. In the past we have worked to expose these
schemes in order to inform the public for its own protection. We
have also worked to examine how effectively our own Federal law
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enforcement agencies have been in coping with these criminal op-
erators, and we have introduced legislation whenever necessary to
strengthen law enforcement’s posture. I am anxious to extend my
full support to your continuation of these important efforts, and all
of us on the minority side will continue to cooperate with you.

Commodity investment fraud schemes have become a tremen-
dous, chronic problem since the mid-1970’s. While commodity fraud
itself is not new, the scope of the problem is. At the present time
most such schemes involve high pressure telephone sales of gold
and/or other precious metals. The targets of these schemes are too
often unsuspecting, unsophisticated individuals who are trying to
find a safe, legitimate investment for their life savings. Too late
they discover that they have paid out large amounts of cash for
metals never purchased, or for exorbitant management fees. Too
often they find that they have no real recourse in recovering their
hard-earned money.

Commodity fraud has been a concern of Congress for many years.
In 1974 Congress established the Commodity Futures Trading Com-
mission and charged it to regulate and police this field. In 1978
Congress amended the Commodity Exchange Act, and reauthorized
the Commission to continue its work for 4 years. This year we must
again consider whether to reauthorize the Commission. This means
we should consider here the scope of the fraud problem as well as
the Federal and State response to that problem. By close examina-
tion in this hearing we can better inform the public and assist our-
selves as Congressmen in our deliberations on the reauthorization
of the Commission.

These hearings are most timely, Mr. Chairman, and I congratu-
late you and the staff of this subcommittee for your work on an
issue of pressing importance.

I congratylate the chairman and the staff of the subcommittee
for bringing up a very serious problem in a very timely fashion.
With the legislation we are going to be considering this year in this
area, I think the investigations that have already taken place and
the hearings, which will demonstrate some of the more vivid exam-
ples of fraud in the commodity field, will be a great help in fram-
ing the legislative response.

There is nothing new about commodity fraud. We have had it for
a long time, but the scope of the problem is much different today
than it was in the past. And that scope is a very broad scope that
threatens many people and, of course, the commodity business
itself is growing very rapidly.

So I think the hearings are timely, and I look forward to hearing
the witnesses.

Chairman Rota. Thank you, Senator Nunn. Our first witnesses
today are all victims of various commodity schemes. We have with
us George Connor of Quakerstown, Pa. If you would please come
forward and sit down at the table as your name is called. Barbara
Hess from Blairstown, N.J . Dave Schonbach from Wilmington,
Del.; and Pauline Hazebrouck from Woonsocket, R.I.

Will you all please rise so that—as well as Roy Geffen, our staff

ll;lnvegtigator-——so‘yéu may be sworn in at this time. Raise your right
and.
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Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you are about to give
beforeythis subconfm’ittee is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Connor. I do.

Ms. Hess. I do.

Mr. ScaHonBACH. I do.

Ms. HAZEBRO}I(&K. I do.

r. GEFFEN. I do. o '
léllhairman Rotr. I would tell the group that it is a rule of this
subcommittee that all witnesses are sworn. I understand you all
have short statements for the record, so let’s begin with Mr.
Connor, and we will proceed through the rest of the panel. Mr.

Connor.

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE CONNOR, BARBARA HESS, DAVE SCHON-
BACH, PAULINE HAZEBROUCK, AND ROY GEFFEN, STAFF IN-
VESTIGATOR

Mr. ConNoR. My name is George Connor. I am 70 years old and
live with my wife, Marian, in a mobile horpe park. in Quakertqwn,
Pa., approximately 40 miles north of Philadelphia. I am retired
from my job with a manufacturing/engineering company in Phila-
delphia. .- . . .

In the early part of 1979, I answered an ad in a magazine as
was interested in getting involved in gold because I had heard on
television and in various magazines how it would be a good hedge
against inflation. I was contacted by a couple of companies, but the
second salesman was much more high pressure, and I fell for his
pitch. The salesman represented a firm called Consolidated Gold &
Silver in Miami, Fla. The initial investment was for a gold deferre;d
payment plan which was for one contract of 10 ounces of gold for
the price of $3,000. The price was supposed to represent 10 percent
of the market value for the gold. The contract was due in 6
months. I knew at that time I would have te close out the contracts
and pay the full price. In addition to controlling the 10 ounces of
gold, I also received in the mail five kruggerands,

During the period of March 1979 and June 15, 1979,. the s.ales-
man convinced me to buy additional gold contracts on eight differ-
ent occasions. I paid either $4,000 for a contract and received five
kruggerands, or I paid $3,000 for the contract and received no
kruggerands, During that 90-day period, I bought a total of 11 con-
tracts for 10 ounces each and invested a total of $40,000. I also re-
ceived 35 kruggerands in the deal. _

Of course, during that time, the salesman was very interested
and kept me on the ball by calling at least twice a week, sometimes
oftener, to let me know how much the gold was going up or how
much money 1 was making and to convince me to buy more gold.
But as the contracts became due, I stopped hearing from him. I

tried to cash in the first three contracts in October, but was told I

as too late for each. _

v The contracts did specifically state if I did not meet the deadline,
I would forfeit the contract. The salesman, although somewhat
apologetic, convinced me that I had nothing to worry about as I
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still had eight contracts and I had plenty of chance to make a lot of
money.

He told me to send in the balance money for the next two con-
tracts as gold was up to $700 an ounce, up from $254. On Qctober 9,
I sent in a check of $25,000 to cash in one of the contracts, for him
to buy the contract. I sent an additional check for another contract
of $25,700 to close out those two contracts. After sending off the
checks totaling $50,940, I never heard from the company again,
except in November when I was told that the next contract’s dates
were changed from November 1979 to February 1, 1980, an obvious
stalling technique.

In all, T invested a total of $90,940, but did manage to sell my 85
kruggerands for about $13,000. My total cash loss to Consolidated
Gold was $77,690. ,

The salesman had convinced me each time that I could not lose
money, and I could tell by following the papers myself how much
the gold was increasing in value. I figured the profit from my first
contracts would allow me to pay in full for each contract when
they became due. I had no reason to doubt the company at first as
they even furnished the kruggerands to prove that they did deal in
gold. That is about how I came out.

Chairman RotH. I think what we will do is get the testimony
from each one of you, Mr. Connor, then we will ask questions after-
ward. Thank you. Next, Barbara Hess.

Ms. Hess. My name is Barbara Hess. I am 51 years old, unmar-
ried, and live with my 83-year-old mother. Neither my mother nor
I work, and we survive solely on social security income.

I feel I must explain, then, how I had the money to get involved
in the investments which ultimately took every penny my mother
and I had in the world. We owned a home in northern New Jersey
and had decided to sell it and move to the country for a quieter
and cheaper lifestyle. We sold the house, with the intention of
buying a new one, but the market and interest rates were so bad
that we decided to rent for a while. I wanted to put all of the
money from the house into a safe investment which would be very
liquid in case we wanted to buy. All the money I invested was the
house money.

I was studying up on investments, and through discussions with
friends, I realized precious metals were going to move. I knew a
little about leveraging, and I was looking for a company I could
deal with. I eventually responded to an ad in June 1979, in the
Wall Street Journal, for a company called Federal Gold and Silver
in Minneapolis. They sent me a brochure in the mail and, then, a
few days later I received a call from a salesman. The salesman was
very professional and answered all my questions concerning the
company. He assured me that I could withdraw my funds at any
time. I had told the salesman that I only had this house money to
invest and he assured me that there was no risky futures or op-
tions or any problem with the investment. After checking first with
the CFTC and Better Business Bureau, I opened up an account to
buy gold, using leverage.

On August 8, 1979, T purchased 160 kruggerands valued at $300
per ounce and worth a total of $48,000. I paid $10,808. On the next
day, I purchased another 160 coins for $10,198. Between August 9
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and August 27, the salesman kept calling me and telling me what
good investments I made and how gold was going to continue to go
pOn August 27, he induced me to withdraw the balance of my sav-
ings, which was approximately $9,600, which I had placed in a
money-market fund. He then convinced me to purchase 80 addi-
tional coins for which I paid $5,460. I simply endorsed the check
from the money-market fund and sent it to Federal Gold and
Silver. They said the balance of the check, approximately’ $4,000,
was credited to my account for additional purchases.

On the next day, I purchased 160 more coins for the purchase
price of $20,448. I paid for these with the balance of the money-
market fund already credited to my account, plus a check for
$3,035, and I mailed Federal Gold and Silver 42 kruggerands _wh1ch
I had purchased just prior to getting involved with that company.

On or about September 4, 1979, I started getting very nervous
and anxious about the investments, so I decided to sell. I called the
salesman and requested all my investment and profits to be with-
drawn and sent to me except for about $4,000. The salesman had
me speak to one of the officers of the company who managed to
convince me through his smooth talking to leave the money in. He
reassured me that I had complete control of the money and could
take it out any time I wanted to. . .

About a week later, I called to definitely withdraw all my money,
but the line was busy all day. The next day I finally got through. I
was told by an attorney that the Federal Government had tempo-
rarily halted all businesi of Federal Gold and Silver and it could do
nothing for about a week.

I nex%er heard from the firm again. I also learned that the State
of Miunesota came in and audited Federal Gold and Silver in April
1979 and apparently blew the whistle, but the firm was still al-
lowed to operate and take my money as late as August 28, 1979.

Chairman Rors. Thank you, Ms. Hess. Next I would like to wel-
come Dave Schonbach who &g from my hometown of Wilmington.
Dave, will you please proceed?

Mr. SCHgNBA%H. M}II) name is Dave Schonbach. I am 34 years old,
married, and have a Ph. D. in electrical engineering. I am a com-
puter consultant with the Engineering Department of the E. L. du
Pont Co. .

Back in early 1979, I received a packet of business reply cards
unsolicited in the mail. I had mailed a couple of them back because
I was somewhat interested in trying different investments. I later
received a telephone call from a salesman representing one of
these firms called Connors and Davenport. The salesm‘an told me
they were registered with the CFTC. I called the CFTC hotline
number and left my name and number, but they never returned
my call. R .

I already had one gold contract on margin with another firm and
was looking for a different vehicle. Connors and Davenport de-
scribed a deferred delivery contract to me, which seemed to meet
my goal. . .

The salesman initjally wanted me to invest in a 5,000-ounce
silver contract. Finally, we settled on a 4,500-ounce contract with a
total price of $7,415 which included a 5-percent commission of $370.
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The contract for silver was for 6 months, and the silver was valued
at $8.85 an ounce. I was a little concerned about how the finances
flowed, so I asked them specifically, “If I sold tomorrow, what
would I get back?”’ The salesman said that I would get back the
$7,415 minus the $370 commission. ‘

It turns out that this was not explained to me properly. They
never told me T would never see the $7,415 again, nor did they
make it clear that if the price of silver went below $8.85, I would
%ft Fothing. It turned out the entire $7,415 was their non-refunda-

e fee. :

I never received a copy of the contract, only a confirmation
paper. After sending them my money, the firm never returned my
calls or answered the mail, nor did they sell the contract as re-
quested. I never saw any of the $7,415 again. ,

I contacted the CFTC hotline number on two occasions and left a
message to have them return my call. Neither call was ever re-
turned. I eventually contacted the Washington office directly and
was told that the firm was being investigated. I asked them what 1
could do, and they sent me a reparations claim form. I sent the
form in and received acknowledgement of receipt from the CFTC. I
never paid the $25 filing fee because the CFTC would not accept
my complaint. I was also contacted by the Postal Inspectors in
Phoenix who asked me to fill out a questionnaire. :

As a result of this bad experience, I have completely altered my
investment strategy to a conservative approach. This has signifi-
cantly reduced my return on investments. )

_ Chairman Rota. Thank you, Mr. Schonbach. And last we have
Pauline Hazebrouck. ‘ o

Ms. Hazesrouck. My name is Pauline Hazebrouck. I am 67 years
old, I am widowed and I have three grown children. I am employed
as a typist for the Rhode Island Welfare Department in Woon-
socket, R.I. \ .

In the winter of 1980, I answered an ad in a magazine relating to
investing 'in commodities. I was interested in seeing how people
made money, so I sent in the card. I made a telephone call to Inter-
national Precious Metals Corp. and spoke to a salesman. He con-
vinced me to buy a leverage contract for $5,000. He spent some
time explaining what a leverage contract was, and I finally agreed
to the sale. I paid an additional $5,000 for margin calls. Eventually,
I got a check back for $2,600, but the salesman called me back
trying to resell me. I remember him using the line, “Just because
you've had a car accident doesn’t mean you don’t drive anymore.” I
did not buy any more contracts from him. '

In December 1980, I received a phone cail from another salesman
representing the firm First Commodity Corp. of Boston. It took a
couple of calls to convince me to invest. I finally bought a $4,000
futures contract in gold, and I was also put into other commodities
like wheat and copper. I eventually lost $3,800 of my $5,800 invest-
ment with them. ,

While I was still involved in the copper, I received a call from a
salesman who represented Prime Precious Metals Co. He called
many times and kept explaining to me how I was not making
money with First Commodities of Boston. He promised to make
money for me, so I bought two 500,000 Mexican pesos contracts for
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$2,988 each. He told me I could make a lot of money and cenvinced
me that I should get out of the copper contract with FCCB.

After my initial investment with Prime Precious Metals, I
stopped hearing from that salesman and began hearing from an-
other salesman named Toni Hunt. Mr. Hunt represented Premier
Precious Metals Co. which took over for Prime Precious Metals. He
proceedéd to smooth talk me into purchasing four different con-
tracts for silver and copper.

During the 1-month weriod where I bought the four contracts
from Premier Precious Metals, Toni Hunt convinced me to borrow
from my certificates of deposit and even from my sister.

During the next 2 months, Mr. Hunt kept changing firm nauies,
but continued to sell me various strategic metals. He sold me two
contracts in manganese and cobalt while working for Prime Strate-
gic Metals, and he sold me cobalt and germanium while employed
with Prime Strategic Metals Internationale. On one occasion, I
changed my mind about buying a contract, and Mr. Hunt told me I
had no choice. He said I had to pay or I was in detault. I had asked
him what that meant, and he said he was telling me in a nice way
that I had to pay. I also bought my last contract from Toni Hunt
which was for manganese, and he was operating SMI Funding
Corp. In total, I made 13 separate investments with these firms to-
taling $88,122. I have never seen any of the money from the invest-
ments beginning with the Mexican pesos. ‘

All of these contracts were for 12- to 15-month delivery dates
and, up until this point, only one contract is about due. This con-
tract was the first for Mexican pesos and was scheduled for settle-
ment on February 22, 1982, which was yesterday. I received a letter
in the mail dated January 24, 1982. That letter suddenly asked me
for delivery instructions and that I would be charged interest of 10
percent on any unpaid purchase price. The letter was signed by
Mr. Terry Ziegler who was named as the president on the letter-
head of Prime Strategic Metals Co. I ignored the letter as I found
out in September or October of 1981 that Toni Hunt had disap-
peared, and then I began to investigate the firm.

I contacted the CFTC in Washington and was told that the firms
were under investigation. I realized then that I had lost all my
money. : ‘

Chairman Rorta. Thank you. I, first of all, want to express the
appreciation of the subcommittee to each one of you for appearing
before our panel. I fully appreciate and understand it is not very
easy to come forward and discuss these problems which occur all
too often. But I think what you are doing here can be very helpful,
very helpful from the standpoint of giving us a better insight as to
W}gy the law, why the Commission is not-able to do an adequate
JoD. :

Perhaps even more importantly, I would hope that the coverage,
the publicity given your cases will be helpful to the public at large
because it does seem to me one of the most important things is to
make the public generally aware that there are con artists around
who are going to try to bilk them of their funds.

So I just want to express to each one of you my great apprecia-
tion. |
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I would like to ask one question of each of you—the same ques-
tion—and that is, what contact did you have with Commodity Fu-
tures Trading Commission? Of course, if you have had none, then
tha}t will end the question, but if you did have contact, the nature
of it, even though you may have spelled it out some in your testi-
mony, whether you felt they were helpful, what you think needs to
be done to correct the weaknesses of the law. Mr. Connor, would
you care to comment?

[At]th1s point, Senator Rudman withdrew from the hearing
room.

Mr. ConNoR. I never contacted them in advance. I talked about
them later when I got to the postal inspector and U.S. attorney’s
office when they were prosecuting, but I had not contacted them
prior to that time.

Chairman RotH. So you have had very little communication.
Dave, would you care to comment?

[At this point, Senator Rudman entered the hearing room.]

Mr. ScHonBACH. Before making my investment with Connors &
Davenport—— '

Chairman Rota. Would you bring the microphone a little closer?

Mr. ScHonBACH [continuing]. I called the CFTC 800 number
which had turned out to be an answering service, and I left my
name and telephone number. They never returned my call. Later
when I was having problems contacting Connors & Davenport di-
rectly, I attempted to call them again on that number and left my
name and phone number, and they didn’t return the call.

Later, I obtained their Washington number and called them di-
rectly. At that time, they told me that Connors & Davenport was
under investigation. So I asked them what I could do, and they
segt me a form to fill out to file a claim with them.

Somewhat later, I was concerned what was happening so I sent
them a letter asking what had happened. I believe it would be ap-
propriate if I could read two excerpts from letters I did receive
from them.

The first letter is dated November 30, 1979, and this is in re-
sponse or acknowledging receipt of the complaint that I did issue
against Connors & Davenport. This is paragraph 2 in that letter:

Connors & Davenport, Ltd., is not registered with the Commission as required by
law and appears to no longer be in business. Our attempt to serve complaints upon
the firm at their principal place of business, Greater Arizona Savings Building,

Suite 412, Phoenix, Arizona, 85004, have been unsuccessful. Until an address is ob.
tained, we will not attempt to serve your complaint on Connors & Davenport, Ltd.

Several months later, I sent a letter to the CFTC to determine
the status of that complaint. In reply, I got a very short two-para-
graph letter dated March 10, 1980:

. In answer to your letter of February 11, 1980, Connors & Davenport is no longer
in busn}ess, and we are unable to serve your complaint at the address given in the
complaint. Unless you provide this unit within 30 days with an address at which

Connors & Davenport can be successfully served, we will take no furth ti
this matter and the file will be closed. Y ’ no further action on

My interpretation of that letter is that if I wanted anything to be
done, I should conduct my own investigation and, when completed,

give the results to the CFTC, all within 30 days. There is just no
way that I have the resources to conduct such an investigation.
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Chairman Rota. I find that unbelievable. Here is a procedure,
reparations, that was theoretically established to help people out
that were in your plight. So instead of helping you, it seems to me
they were just doing the very opposite. It is obvious the system is
not going to work if that is the approach.

Mr. ScuonNBAcH. I agree. \ .

Chairman Rorta. I would like to ask that we have copies of those
letters to be included as part of the record. ‘ ‘

[The documents referred to were marked “Exhibit No. 1,” for ref-
erence and may be found in the files of this subcommittee.]

Chairman Roru. Let me go on now. Ms. Hess, your comments.

Ms. Hgess. I had contact with the CFTC in the beginning before I
invested anything. I set out to, a term I have used right along, re-
search the various corapanies, and I contacted the Chicago CFTC
by phone. I was told to call the New York City office. When I did
this, I was referred to their 800 number. There was a woman—she
had a very young voice. She identified herself as Jackie on that 800
line, and I found out later that she was the only individual who
marined that line at any time. She had full charge of it. When I

asked specifically about Federal Gold and Silver, I was told that

they, indeed, were registered with CFTC and that the firm was in
good standing with them. And that statement from the CFTC rep-
resentative was really the spur that gave me the confidence to deal
with Federal Gold & Silver. I thought it was a legitimate firm. I
was totally naive assuming that coming from a government agency,
that it meant something. :

The Federal Gold and Silver stationery and also the salesman
practically flaunted this “registered with the CFTC” phrase. When
the receivership took place, I immediately did what I could to con-
tact the CFTC. The 800-number—dJackie vanished. I couldn’t get
her on the phone and, in fact, the 800 number rang on and on. It
didn’t answer for days.

The reparations form, which was sent to me, obviously needed an
attorney, but I did file through a commodities attorney in August
of 1981—1I filed within their 2-year statute of limitations, and it
was very complicated. My attorney told me, in answer to a remark
I made, that indeed, in his opinion, it did take a commodity special-
ist to find nis way through this form which was supposed to be for
the layman. And I would like Mr. Geffen to continue here with
some of the difficulties that my attorney has had both with the
CFTC and the receiver in Minnesota who is handling Federal Gold
and Silver. .

Chairman Rotu. Mr. Geffen.

Mr. GEFFEN. Briefly, Mr. Chairman, I had an opportunity to talk
to Ms. Hess’ attorney, Wayne Greenstone of Newark, N.J. He sent
in that reparations claim form in August 24, 1981. The complaint
was returned by the CFTC on October 20 of 1981, and the reason
given was that there were not enough specifics concerning the re-
spondents in her case.

A few day later, he called the CFTC and they said, and I don’t
know who “they” is, they were going to check with the legal people
at the CFTC and they would get back to him and see if they could
extend the 15-day time limit. He then sent letters to the CFTC.on
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November 30, January 7, 1982, and February 8, 1982, and he still
has heard nothing from them. i _ ‘

Chairman RotH. I feel like I ought to ask Ms. Hess which was
more frustrating, dealing with the one selling the futures or the
Federal agency?

Ms. Hess. Well, of course, I was buffered by my attorney, but——

Chairman Rors. The whole experience was outrageous.

Ms. Hess. Terrible; terrible. :

Chairman RotH. Go ahead, Mr. Geffen.

Mr. GEFFEN. That'’s all.

Chairman Roru. I find what you have to say, Ms. Hess, again,
unbelievable. No. 1, your statement that when you called initially
they told you that this firm was registered and in good standing
demonstrates the point I made earlier that the registration which
was supposed to help the public, because of the simplistic approach
apparently being taken, is self-defeating instead. It is misleading
the very people you are trying to help. ‘

I assure you, when the head of the agency comes up in a couple
of days, we will ask him questions about that specific case.

I am also concerned by the fact here was a procedure where you
were not supposed to need any lawyer at all, and it became so
bogged down in legal niceties that it collapsed of its own weight. I
thank you, Ms. Hess. '

Now I would like to ask Ms. Hazebrouck for your comments.

Ms. HazeBrouck. I filed a claim with CFTC just this past month,
and nothing has been done yet.

Chairman Rotu. No action.

Ms. HazeBrouck. No. '

~Chairman RotH. You are just starting. I want to turn it over to
the other Senators, but I find this raises some very serious ques-
tions as to the effectiveness of the agency itself. Senator Rudman.

Senator RubpMmaN. I wonder if any of you could tell me if you had
contacted any authorities at the State level other than what you
did in terms of contacting the CFTC? I wonder if we could start
with Ms. Hess. Did you contact anyone else?

Ms. HEss. I made—I don’t want to make a false statement here. I
have a very flat file at home which covers this couple of years
period. I specifically tried to find out about this audit. This was re-
cently, within the last few months, and I didn’t get anywhere. I felt
perhaps while there is always this in back of my mind, that is,
there is a suit, possible, against some agency here—what I am in-
terested in is recovery of some money for sheer survival financial-
ly, but I didn’t get anything viable back from them.

Chairman Rora. Mr. Schonbach.

Mr. ScuonsacH. I did not contact any State official. Primarily I
was given the impression by others in the investment field that it
was not under the State jurisdiction, and I would have to go
through the CFTC. I was at one time considering sending a letter

to Senator Roth and my other Senator to see what could be done,

but dismissed that also. -

Senator RupMmaN. I assume if you had bought an automobile for
$10,000 and went to get delivery of the automobile and the dealer
refused to deliver to you that you would probably go to some State
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or local law enforcement authority to try to get help to get delivery
of that car. That is a reasonable thing to do. .

Mr. ScHONBACH. Yes. ' '

Senator RUDMAN. But this being commodities, you just assumed,
and I think correctly, that the Federal Government had essentially
preempted the States. ' ‘

Mr. ScaHoNBACH. There was another agency that was investigat-
ing this also, and that was the postal inspector in Phoenix. So far
as I was concerned—I was reviewing this in my home, looking
through the papers I did have, there were two Federal agencies
working on this.

Senator RupMAN. And that gave you, at least initially, some
comfort? .

Mr. ScHONBACH. Yes, at least that something would be done. I
was not confident that I would ever see the money again, but at
least I was hoping that by giving my testimony and filing these
complaints that perhaps I could do something to prevent this sort
of thing happening to other victims.

Mr. ConnNoOR. I had originally contacted not a State organization
but the Better Business Bureau because I was starting to get nerv-
ous the way things were going. I didn’t get any answer at all, and I
thought everything was OK. Finally, I called the Better Business
Bureau in Miami, Fla., and they said that they have been trying to
get some information on him, on this company, but they had
turned it over to the postal inspector.

They gave me the postal inspector’s phone number and name. I
called them. They knew all about it, and they referred me to the
U.S. attorney’s office. Then I finally found out what was going on.

Senator RupmaN. Ms. Hazebrouck.

Ms. HazeBrouck. No, I did not contact anybody else but CFTC.
, 1Se1(1iator RupmaN. I understand you work for the State of Rhode

sland.

Ms. Hazesrouck. Yes, I do. ; -

Senator RupMmaN. It never occurred to you to contact any State
agencies such as the State attorney’s office?

Ms. HAzEBROUCK. At one time, I was thinking of giving contact
to the attorney general in Fort Lauderdale.

Senator Rupman. Mr. Chairman, the reason, of course, I ask the
question is because I think the very thrust of these hearings will be
directed to whether or not this kind of fraud is really different
from most kinds of fraud and, in many cases, cannot be handled in
a far more efficient manner at the State and local level. Certainly,
it isn’t being handled very well at the Federal level.

I don’t bave any other questions of these witnesses other than
to—do you have a comment? »

Ms. Hess. I did fail to say one thing. I wrote to my Congressman
on several occasions, and it was about mid-1981, my second corre-
spondence with him, and-he suggested I write to the attorney gen-
eral’s office in Minnesota, which I did. It was just thrown right
back in my lap with letters that the matter was not within their
jurisdiction. I thought this was rather stupid because my Congress-
man—that was his one suggestion, and it just was invalid.

Senator Rubpman. I just want to say to the witnesses, Mr. Chair-
man, that I join you in thanking them for their testimony. They
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obviously are just a very, very small tip of the iceberg that exists
in this country of tens, and maybe hundreds, of thousands of
people who have lost not millions, but hundreds of millions of dol-
lars because, in my view, a law that had reasonable intentions at
the outset has failed miserably. I certainly hope the result of these
hearings will be to recommend legislation that will correct that.

Chairman Rota. Thank you very much, Senator Rudman. I, as
you know, share your concern as to what has happened at the
State level.

I regret that Senator Nunn had to be called out for another
meeting. We will leave the record open so that in the event he or
any other member of the panel have additional questions, they
would submit them in writing. I would ask that you respond.

I want to express the appreciation of the subcommittee for your
extraordinarily helpful testimony today. Thank you very much.
You are now excused. _

At this time, I will call on Mr. Weiland to introduce a number of
exhibits on behalf of the subcommittee.

Mr. WEiLAND. Mr. Chairman, because of our limited time, I think
it is appropriate that the staff’s written statement summing up our
investigation simply be offered into the record. It summarizes the
indepth work performed by our investigators over the past 8
months. I do expect staff to testify tomorrow about some aspects of
this statement, but I would offer it in its entirety at this time.

Chairman Roru. Without objection, so ordered.!

[The document referred to was marked “Exhibit No. 2,” for refer-
ence, and may be found in the appendix on p. 145.] .

Mr. WELAND. I would like to enter several exhibits, including
several charts we have prepared. The first is captioned “The Com-
modity Club,” and it requires a little bit of an explanation.

[The chart referred to was marked “Exhibit No. 8, for reference
and follows:]

1See p. 145 for the staff’s prepared statement.
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Mr. WemAaND. Essentially, the chart provides a limited picture of
a common feature in the commodity scam business; that is, people
involved tend to move from one firm to another. There is no begin-
ning or end to this chart. You can simply pick it up at any particu-
lar point and follow the progress of principals or salesmen of the
firms represented on the chart from one firm to another.

I would point out that the staff had to cut the chart off at some
point. I think we have approximately 50 firms represented. We
could have gone on and on to list approximately 200 more firms.

The second chart deals with a commodity case we will be hearing
about today and a little tomorrow. It is entitled “Comercial Petro-
lera Internacional.” It is also called the Bartex case or crude oil
case. It shows a nationwide network of retailers who were set up to
handle the marketing of crude oil contracts in 1979 and early 1980.
Several of our witnesses today had some association with this case.

[The chart referred to was marked “Exhibit No. 4,” for reference,

and follows:]
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Mr. WEeiLaND. Finally, I would like to introduce a 5-minute tape
recording which was made by a boilerroom operator in New York
City. Essentially, it is a conversation between a salesmman named
Michael Gharbi, who represented National City Trading Corp. and
one of his victims, a Ms. Lillian Wooten. Ms. Wooten invested
$2,500 of her own money. it was all she could, and she bought what
was described to her as a deferred delivery contract for silver.

[The tape recording referred to was marked ‘“Exhibit No. 5” for
reference and remains in the files of the subcommittee.]

Mr. WEILAND. As her contract became due, she received a mail-
gram from the firm stating she had to pay the full purchase price
of the silver, an additional $16,900. That was not her understand-
ing at all from her salesman, who she identifies on the tape as Mr.
Kelleher. Mr. Gharbi is trying to convince her to send in the
$16,900 or she will lose all of her prior investment, not to mention
the profit she should be entitled to at this point.

If Mr. Gharbi was successful in getting the extra money from his
victims, which he was not in this case, his next step in this scam
would be to tell the customer that the supplier, Euro-Swiss, had de-
faulted and there was nothing the customer could do but sue Euro-
Swiss. This particular firm and its three principal operators, in-
cluding Mr. Gharbi, were indicted and convicted of mail fraud.
Gharbi received a 1-year prison sentence and the other defendants
received 2%-year and 6-month terms.

National City Trading Corp.’s boilerroom induced 140 victims to
invest approximately $600,000. The people lost a potential profit in
excess of $2.5 million.

Finally, I point out that the tape has been edited slightly from
about an 8-minute conversation to an approximately 5-minute con-
versation. So there are occasional clicking noises.

[At this point, the tape recording of a conversation between Mr.
Michael Gharbi and Ms. Lillian Wooten was played.]

Chairman RorH. Qur next witnesses are Kenneth Levin and
Richard Waggoner. Mr, Levin is just completing his Federal sen-
tence for a commodity scheme centered in New York. Mr. Wag-
goner is still serving concurrent Federal/State sentences for his
participation in the New York scheme with Mr. Levin, as Well as a
California operation. Please raise your right hand.

Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you are about to give
before the subcommittee is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Leviv. I do.

Mr. WAGGONER. I do.

Chairman RotH. Please be seated. Mr. Levin, I ask you now to
read your statement.

TESTIMONY OF KENNETH LEVIN AND RICHARD WAGGONER,
COMMODITY FRAUD DEFENDANTS

Mr. WagcoNER. My name is Richard Waggoner. I am presently
serving a 3-year sentence in a Federal penitentiary——

Chairman RotH. Just a minute, please. We would like to start
with you, Mr. Levin, and then you, Mr. Waggoner. You can sum-
marize, if you will.

{
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Mr. LEviN. I have prepared a statement and would like to enter
it into the record, with your permission.? :

Chairman Roru. Without objection. ‘ A

Mr. LEviN. I would like to summarize somewhat before answer-
ing any questions the subcommitte may have. .

My name is Kenneth Levin. I am currently completing a l-year
prison term which I am serving for my part in a commodity fraud
scheme. I pled guilty to one count of mail fraud, wire fraud, and
conspiracy as a result of the charges brought against me in Boston.

Since February 1977, 1 have been involved with numerous com-
modity sales opeations. I started with a firm called British Ameri-
can Commodities earning a commission of 10 percent. In August
1977, I further moved to a new company, J. M. King & Associates,
that was not in commodity options but managed accounts, where I
felt I could earn more funds. .

In 1978, I started my own firm called Meridian Equities with
three other investors. I left shortly after I started that firm and
became a salesman for Fairchild, Arabatzis & Smith in New York
City, where I earned a commission of 20 percent. British American,
J. M. King, and Fairchild were all sued by the Commodity Futures
Trading Commission, and two criminal actions arose out of Fair-
child, but none I was involved in.

I understand that the day the Commodity Futures Trading Com-
mission closed British American’s successor, First Regal Commod-
ities, the principals reportedly stole $397,000 of segregated custom-
er funds and yet were never prosecuted. _

In August 1979, I formed Bartex Petroleum with Mr. James
Morse. Mr. Morse and I were eventually convicted for our partici-
pation in Bartex Petroleum. We first became interested in this
crude oil futures deal through a third person who presented us
with a brochure. We made significant revisions in this brochure
upon advice of our attorney in order to give potential customers
more safety in their investment in this operation.

Based on the revised brochure, a Dun & Bradstreet statement
that was given to us, references from a prominent Panamanian
bank and statements made by this third party, we decided to form
Bartex Petroleum to market the crude oil contracts. .

We had researched the firm initially to be convinced that it was
a legitimate operation. It was not until November 1979, 3 months
after we went into operation, that we learned that the operation
was a sham. By then, real volume was beginning to get underway,
and so we continued to operate until we were closed down by New
York State with a cease and desist order in December 1979. _

Now, Senators, I would like to give you an idea of how boiler-
rooms operate. Boilerrooms are quite common in the country.
There are many reasons for the numbers, none the least of which
include the ease they can be set up. Likewise, as a general rule,
enforcement is spotty and penalties are rarely harsh. I could start
up a boilerroom operation with a minimum investment of $.10,0QO.
The only real expenses are telephones, desks, and rent deposits, file
cabinets, and so forth, to fill an office. If T really worked at it, I

1See p. 184 for the prepared statement of Kenneth Levin,
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could probably earn $100,000 per week in a high ticket operation
that sells a commodity from $4 to $10,000. :

If I went into a tax shelter program and a 15-man operation, I
could gross up to $40 million a year. My earnings during 1979
during this operation at Bartex was approximately $120,000.

As an indication of how easy it is to set up a boilerroom, I know
of one person who set it up over the telephone while he was incar-
cerated in prison. Boilerrooms generally consist of an owner, an
office manager, and a salesman. The rooms with which I am famil-
iar with were generally very small, very overcrowded where the
salesmen were sitting on top of each other. This not only saves
rent, but helps build a high level of confidence among the salesmen
themselves. When a sale is closed, the other salesmen on top of
him get excited from that and, of course, get on the telephone to
try and generate more income for themselves. So the excitement of
being in a close room is more conducive for sales. Pills and alcohol
are very common in these boilerroom operations. ‘

In my experience, most salesmen do not know whether or not the
commodities they are selling are backed, nor do they ask, nor do
they care. Few, if any, salesmen ever get prosecuted and, as a
group, they are not worried about law enforcement efforts and
much less the Commodity Futures Trading Cornmission.

The keystone to the industry, of course, is high, extremely high
sales pressure. A device used by salesmen to make money through
the sales is their customer lists. In 1979, most salesmen got names
of prospective customers by buying a Dun & Bradstreet list, a Dun-
hill list, and many other lists circulating around the country. Not
many customer lists are sold by the salesmen themselves.

People who reply to business cards sent out and people who have
lost money in previous commodity deals are excellent prospects for
futures sales. Selling names could be profitable. I personally sold
3,000 names at $10 each prior to being incarcerated.

Now I will go into a little bit of managed accounts and commaod-
ity trading advisers, which is a separate section of the commodity
area in which these boilerrooms operate.,

Managed accounts, unlike boilerrooms, generally deal in legiti-
mate commodities trading, but that does not prevent the business
from being extremely lucrative. A client will pay an upfront fee of
a fixed amount to a commodity trading adviser. For illustration, I
will use $5,000. Five thousand dollars is invested into a specific
commodity for 1 year, of which $2,000 becomes what they call a
front-load factor. The house keeps that as their commission. Three
thousand dollars is used to maintain that contract on the exchange
in which the customer during that ‘year in that one specific com-
modity will get 10 to 20 buy and s¢lls with no additional commis-
sion charges. "

Well, what happens after that, within a week or two, the sales-
man calls up the customer and I will give your a brief synopsis:

Mr. Jones, we put you in corn, but you missed the boat. You should have been in
oil. Let me put you into a managed accounts program. All we do is send you new
forms. Sign them for me. Since I have faken $2,000 of your money, of the five, I

don’t want to charge you again. I want to earn my fee. All we will do is charge you
$100 per buy and sell in the commodity that we put you in.
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And, of course, the operation then churns the account. Boiler-
room and churning salesmen tend to recycle themselves through
the industry, as you can see through this chart. Many of us know
each other. Many of us have worked at different houses. Certain
commodity houses have acted as academies for the inner corps of
commodity salesmen. The three most prominent of these, to my
knowledge, is First Commodity of Boston, Crown Colony, and Char-
tered Systems. ’

If you put all the dozens of salesman together who went through
these houses, you would have a very elite corps.

I do not think there are easy and quick remedies to the problem
of the commodities fraud. It is my experience that neither law en-
forcement or the Commodity Futures Trading Commission frighten
houseowners or salesmen. Several States have tried to act quickly
in shutting down houses. If that type of pressure could be kept up,
it might begin to deter operators from opening up new houses.

One area where enforcement is terribly soft is the prosecution of
salesmen. A consistent supply of salesmen who are not afraid of
being caught is the lifeblood of this whole business. Without them,
there would be no business. If the salesmen were consistently pros-
ecuted along with the operators, I think it would make a very dif-
ferent situation than that which is before you today.

I think the most workable method of closing down the big opera-
tors is through putting long-term investigators in their houses.
This, of course, would allow law enforcements to get the owners
and also the salesmen and also spread paranoia through the busi-
ness.

Senators, first I would like to commend you on what you are
trying to do here today, but I personally feel you will be unsuccess-
ful in curbing these commodity frauds. Your investigators were
thorough, but to no fault of their own, they were limited to the
depth of information they were able to obtain. I think this will
make the difference between success and failure. You are dealing
in some cases wita sophisticated individual that will always be one
step ahead of the law. The only way to stop some of these individ-
uals is to be able to extract direct testimony against them. Their
schemes are so sophisticated that the CFTC and the Justice Depart-
ment have difficulty prosecuting them because of their inability to
break through the fraud. Some of these frauds entail overseas af-
filiations. When I first met with your investigators, I told them I
would be able to give them current information as well as informa-
tion on past commodity frauds that were going on today. Some of
the information—I requested immunity on certain individual
frauds that I could give them information about. Although they
were interested and much desired this information, they did not
give me this immunity. Because of certain areas I will not discuss
today, this subcommittee will not uncover all areas of sophisticated
fraud in the commodity markets that are today bilking the Ameri-
can public out of tens of millions of dollars. ‘

I am sure other witnesses feel today as I do who are testifying
before this subcommittee. This is one of the reasons that you will
be limited to the information that you will receive. It seems to me
that most of the information we will hear will be an inside look on
past commodity fraud and that you will be missing an important
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I have been involved in commodity operations since 1976. I began
my career as a high-pressure boilerroom salesman, moved from
there into managed accounts, and eventually set up two separate
commodity sales networks. In the latter case, I set up the network
structure and left the actual recruitment and operation of the sales
forces to wholesalers and retailers throughout the country. I have
come before the subcommittee today to describe these operations
and offer whatever assistance I can to deter these types of abuses
in the future.

I obtained my first experience in commodities with the firm of
Economic Systems, Inc., in Century City, Calif. As far as I know,
this started out as a legitimate commodity operation selling
London options. I became Economic’s top salesman and gradually
began managing one person’s account exclusively. The owner of
Economic Systems initially invested this person’s money, but I
eventually took control of his investments and became a partner
with the owner of Economic Systems.

Over a period of 2 years, we lost about $10.5 million of this one
investor’s money—a little legitimately and most not so legitimate-
ly. Even though we were losing client’s investments, we had a com-
puter system set up that we rigged to show that he was making
significant profits. It eventually got so bad that we made up a story
that his funds were actually being invested in a front company for
the Central Intelligence Agency which was to explain why we
could not give him complete access to his funds. When we were
into him for several million, we decided to destroy all his records
regarding his dealings with us and blame it on the CIA. When we
had finished with this client, we had depleted his over $12 million
estate down to $500,000.

In 1978, while all this was going on, my partner and I decided to
form a commodity operation dealing in currencies. Based on past
experience, we decided we needed to follow the following principles:

No. 1, use a nonstandard contract, and these are principles that
most sham operations use.

No. 2, use an unregulated commodity.

No. 3, provide for a minimal downpayment to give the appear-
ance of a purchase.

‘No. 4, create a phony offshore supplier of the commodity.

And No. 5, use the boilerroom technique. ;

We, therefore, set up an operation known as SMI. That stands
for System Monetary International. We told our wholesalers and
retailers at SMI that the currency was backed by a centuries old
currency house in Europe. In fact, there was no such house, and we
had no intention of buying any currency whatsoever.

Our plan was to sell currency for future delivery with a 10-per-
cent downpayment and a 90-percent service fee. A $2,000 sale
would consist of $1,800 in service fees and a $200 downpayment on
a $10,000 contract. We correctly anticipated that any currency we
would sell would never appreciate enough for the customer to
make any profit. We helped insure this by selling currencies that
had topped out or that had a very flat market, such as the Mexican

£50s.

P Finally, we assumed that we could ponzi any paybacks that
became necessary. Though we explained the commission ar-
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rangement to our clients, we minimized it by stressing that the
most they could lose would be their initial investments whereas
they had an excellent possibility of making large profits.

Though the service fee was explained in our brochure, about half
of our sales were made on the first phone call before the customer
ever saw any literature. SMI was therefore, a two-pronged fraud.
We were selling naked, uncovered currencies and due to an exorbi-
tant fee, profits were virtually impossikle.

Once we got started, we left many of the details of the operation
up to our wholesalers and retailers, none of whom knew the oper-
ation was a sham, although many suspected but they could prob-
ably care less. Our involvement included having phony orders and
confirmations sent daily from London monitoring our investors’ po-
sitions to insure none were getting to us with profits and dictating
what currencies should be pushed.

We were also heavily involved in promotion. We would go on
television and interview each other as experts discussing how cur-
rencies were moving in response to world economic and political
forces. We had our salesmen use similar lines, stating that certain
economic pressures of the previous weeks would move a certain
currency up quickly. A

We also created a false demand by telling clients that we had
only been allocated a certain amount of a given currency and once
that was sold, their opportunity was lost. These and other factors
brought tremendous pressure on people to buy on the first phone
call. When I say pressure, I mean tremendous pressure. Of course,
it was all pure fabrication. Nonetheless, many people bought before
they hung up on the first phone call, and soon our cash flow
became phenomenal.

SMI was 20-percent owned by a Panamanian lawyer we had re-
tained and 40-percent owned by my partner and myself, respéctive-
ly. The Panamanian was the only person on record, and, thus, we
were shielded from view. He also backdated the incorporation
papers of our company and gave it a totally fabricated large net
worth. He then had a CPA friend of his falsely attest to the accura-
cy of the financial statemients. These statements were primarily to
our wholesalers and . .retailers to convince them of our legitimacy
and solvency.

In addition, he set up several other companies for us to use to
thoroughly launder funds back to us so that we would be totally
insulated from the commodity scam. As an example we took com-
modity funds, ran them through several companies in Panama and
Euro}ll)e and then back to us as a loan to be used to purchase.a
ranch.

By the end of 1978, the operation brought in over $3 million by
selling 900 contracts; 30 percent of the money was diverted to our
accounts in Panama. Shortly. thereafter, we were closed down by
California authorities who claimed that what we sold was a secu-
rity. We immediately sold out our clients’ accounts and, as a result,
we wound up with about $160,000 equity liability to those clients.
As we had always depleted our accounts, we had to look to other
sources to pay the clients off.

It was from this that the next and biggest and last scam was
born, Comercial Petrolera Internacional. We knew that to start an-
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other operation would require us keeping our sales force, wholesal-
ers and retailers in place. They, as yet, did not know the sham
nature of our currency operation, although they suspected it, and
to keep that organization intact would require us to pay off all
their open clients. This we did with our new scam.

CRUDE OIL

In early 1979, we devised a scheme to sell crude oil for future de-
livery using the following principles:

We knew the product would have increasing demand; the CFTC
knew little, if anything, about crude oil; crude oil had a complicat-
ed offshore business bid/ask price structure that few would under-
stand; we drew up a contract which strictly limited our liability;
and we, again, organized a captured offshore supplier with a totally
fabricated financial structure.

With this operation, we arranged for our retailers to keep 50 per-
cent of the sales, our wholesalers would keep 20 percent of the re-
maining 50 percent with an additional 5 percent to be hidden in
Panama, which we never did, and the balance was to be split be-
tween me and my partner, the Panamanian attorney.

The crude oil scheme was very similar to the currency deal in
that we again used our Panamanian arrangements and kept our
names out of the picture. However, in the crude oil operation, we
took further steps to convince our wholesalers and retailers of our
legitimacy. For example, we had a totally phony Dun & Bradstreet
report made up by a Dun & Bradstreet representative in Panama
showing our net worth to be about $15 million. However, thisz time
we made the company Iranian based and, thus, the financial state-
ment being before the Iranian revolution could in no way be veri-
fied. We, again, had the phony financials certified in Panama. We
also obtained a letter from a branch of a large Spanish bank in
Panama attesting to our six-figure line of credit and our longstand-
ing relationship with the bank.

We planned to use a composite of Platt’s Oilgram and spot crude
oil prices from a Rotterdam source to price our oil. In actuality, we
priced it at whatever we needed to make a good profit as the pric-
ing of crude was too complicated for the average layman to figure
out anyway.

[At this point, Senator Chiles entered the hearing room.]

Mr. WAGGONER. In attempting to avoid several of our currency
operation pitfalls, we designed a brochure which made it clear we
were only selling the ability to purchase crude as opposed to the
actual commodity or the right to buy the commodity. We also
clearly stated the risk factor, though we kept the actual product
description vague. I mean very vague. I assume our customers

. thought we were buying a specific amount of crude oil for a specific
price at a particular date. Of course, we never bought any crude for
anyone.

We assumed, in setting up the crude oil scam, that oil had
reached its peak in 1979. We, therefore, assumed we wouldn’t have
to cover any of our sales. However, if we had, we were prepared to,
again, ponzi any contracts needing coverage. In fact, when the
Iranian situation got hot, it looked like oil might go up and, there-
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fore, put us in trouble. To remedy this problem i
heavier class of crude, lowered the prices gnd info;'rr‘:;ed So}llgtggsggme}
ers that that particular crude wasn’t moving like we expected it to
. W«is made 400.sa1es totaling over $4 miliion. However, by Decem-
Fex('l 979, the oil scam was also under investigation, this time by
Je eral authorities. Qur currency operation had been closed in
une 1979 by State authorities who were quickly joined by Federal
auth%ntles, our old client from Economic Systems days was almost
out ol money and now the oil scam was under attack. With all this
gglrln;a% toIa t};lleleg;iéﬁl)rc;ecgied to get out of the business and out of the
laijz;'tfro?l ,indictment’. ecame a fugitive from Investigation and
er traveling to Costa Rica, London, Paris, and Mexi ]
;{d to return to the United States and turn my,self in tg)izlﬁg,alu%ﬁglr%-
ies after about a year and a half. I was subsequently prosecuted
and sentenced, and I am now serving my Federal sentence.
) Chairman Roru. Mr. Levin, in your testimony, you alluded to
zﬁme cases where the schemes were going undetected because neij-
er the victim, if I understood you correctly, nor the operator had
any financial reason to want to expose the situtation. I assume yvou
arl?/[ tallilng ab(r}l‘ll:} stome kind of a tax shelter. d
r. LEVIN. That is correct. There are tax sh in di
argfitls. Some ege more specifically involved with cgrlﬁﬁf)dliréie%l.fferent
i alrman RoTH. Would you please explain how they would oper-
dozg;el: II‘gi\gN, I will give you a brief summary of how some of them
. client, of course, is investing in a business which i
bus1nes§ outside of the United States. It couldvﬁgla;rsrnzr;g ﬁiis’»ggi
[n}lag;JE ﬁaechtenstem, Smtzerland. A grantors trust is set up, in the
5 ﬁu ed States for the investors in which he invests in this trust
I e promoters are the ones who handle the trust in setting it up'
ecause most of them _are attorneys. The funds are then invested in

Revenue Service in the United States. Th ili i
. . The only filing th -
i?)?]i t)srt{loezlgr%rﬁtgrs trust _thtaﬂ: files an addend};m al%)ngavﬁrilshnf}fgisr
[ . money 1s then invested in the co ities -
}cetts In an offshore brokerage firm, because the lavls};nelxggltci?t?fe?earft
in drr%tdmg than the laws that are traded here in the United States
ﬁn L 0 glve you an example, if, in fact, you Senator open up a
tro erage account in Merrill Lynch and buy 100 ounces on a fu-
ures contract, when that gold is purchased, they must ticket your
gsggt;x;g glr?lmvbveexi 1toi ltlzh}gt stam%id ptcllrchasehprice immediately in the
. ) urope, they do not have to put
that purchase price for days, weeks, or months. 'IPhe ls;(;:lgyngfpigvt(s)
gﬁerseas In commodities make it very easy for investors to trade in
the marll;zet or, I should say, the promoters trade their money in
in\?egggzl"s (le(f;sptﬁf)qsely losing it, but_the system that they use, the
i %ﬁing s 1 € thelr money and